INC.1909

&

ORLAND PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

Thursday, January 18, 2024 at 5:30 PM
Carnegie Center, 912 Third Street and Via Zoom

P: (530)-865-1600 | www.cityoforland.com

Commission: Stephen Nordbye | Wade Elliott
Sharon Lazorko | Vernon Montague | Michelle Romano
City Officials: Jennifer Schmitke, City Clerk
City Staff: Scott Friend, City Planner
Virtual Meeting Information:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87288194388
Webinar ID: 8872 8819 4388 | Zoom Telephone: 1 (669) 900-9128

Public comments are welcomed and encouraged in advance of the meeting by emailing the City

a M wnh e

Clerk at jtschmitke@cityoforland.com or by phone at (530) 865-1610
by 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting

CALL TO ORDER - 5:30 PM

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

IDENTIFY CHAIRPERSON AND VICE CHAIRPERSON FOR 2024
ORAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

Public Comments:

Members of the public wishing to address the Commission on any item(s) not on the agenda may
do so at this time when recognized by the Chairperson. However, no formal action or discussion will
be taken unless placed on a future agenda. The public is advised to limit discussion to one
presentation per individual. While not required, please state your name and place of residence for
the record. (Public Comments will be limited to three minutes).

CONSENT CALENDAR
A. Approve Planning Commission Minutes from December 21, 2023 (Pg. 3)
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION OR ACTION

A. General Plan Amendment (GPA) #2023-02: Supplement to the 2021-2029 6th Cycle Housing
Element Update - CONTINUED FROM THE DECEMBER 21, 2023 PLANNING COMMISSION
MEETING (Pg.7)

B. PUBLIC HEARING: Rezoning (Z2023-01), Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM 2022-01/2023-02)
and Mitigated Negative Declaration Addendum (MND) Penbrook Subdivision project. -



http://www.cityoforland.com/

CONTINUED FROM THE NOVEMBER 16, 2023 PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING (Pg.
40)

8. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION OR ACTION (Verbal Updates)

A. Planning Department Annual Presentation

B. Hazard Mitigation Plan Update
9. STAFF REPORTS (Verbal Updates)
10. COMMISSIONER REPORTS
11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
12. ADJOURN

CERTIFICATION: Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), the agenda for this meeting was
properly posted on January 15, 2024.

A complete agenda packet is available for public inspection during normal business hours at City Hall,
815 Fourth Street, in Orland or on the City's website at www.cityoforland.com where meeting minutes
and audio recordings are also available.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Orland will make available to members
of the public any special assistance necessary to participate in this meeting. The public should contact
the City Clerk's Office 530-865-1610 to make such a request. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting
will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.




6. A.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, December 21, 2023

Call to Order — The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Stephen Nordbye at 5:30 PM.

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call:
Commissioner’s present —  Chairperson Stephen Nordbye, Vice Chairperson Wade Elliott,
Commissioners Sharon Lazorko, and Vern Montague
Commissioner’s absent - Commissioner Michelle Romano
Councilmember(s) present - Councilmember John McDermott
Staff present - City Planner Scott Friend; City Clerk Jennifer Schmitke

ORAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS
Citizen Comments - None
5. CONSENT CALENDAR

Commissioner Elliott asked for a correction to his motion for the Quiet Creek TSM and Chairperson
Nordbye wanted to note that the Commission discussed with the developer for the Penbrook proposed
subdivision the plot plan and that the Commission asked the developer to go through and make some
changes. Chairperson Nordbye reminded the Commission that the developer stated they would bring
back the changes at a later date. City Planner Scott Friend noted that he has not spoken with the
developer since the previous meeting.

ACTION: Vice Chairperson Elliott moved, seconded by Commissioner Montague to approve
consent calendar will the identified amendment. Motion carried unanimously by a voice
vote, 4-0.

6. PUBLIC HEARING

A. Request to Annex Property; #ANX 2023-01 — Modoc Street #1 / Church of Jesus
Christ of Latter-Day Saints (Property Owner): APN 046-080-016
Zoning Code Amendment #2023-01: Application of City of Orland Zoning:
* Pre-zoning of APN 046-080-016 (Z #2023-03) to the “R-1” (One-Family Residential) zoning
district.
Use Permit #2023-03: Chapter 17.20.040(C) — A request to approve a Conditional Use
Permit (CUP) to permit the continued use of an existing “Church” on the parcel proposed
for annexation.




6. A.

City Planner Scott Friend presented a request to annex an existing +/-5.7 -acre parcel of land into
the City limits of Orland, to pre-zone the parcel with the City of Orland “R-1" zoning district
(Residential One-Family) in anticipation of the annexation, and, to approve a Conditional Use
Permit to allow for the continued use of the existing “church” (Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-
Day Saints) as specified in Section 17.20.040 (C) of the Orland Municipal Code (OMC).

The project site is located just beyond the northern edge of the Orland City Limits at the northernmost
end (cul-de-sac) of Modoc Street, in the unincorporated area of Glenn County. The site is bordered on
the north by a single-family residence, with Stony Creek beyond; Modoc Street to the west with a vacant
parcel used as a cattle pasture beyond; the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (BoR) / Orland Unit Water Users
Association (OUWUA) Lateral 40 canal abuts the southern border of the site, with a single-family
residential neighborhood beyond; and a vacant parcel to the east, that has been previously proposed for
a single-family residential development (Creekside Estates) with a single-family residential neighborhood
beyond. The property is currently zoned “RE-5" in the County of Glenn and is designated in the City of
Orland General Plan as “R-L”. The property is located within the City Council adopted and Glenn LAFCo
approved Sphere of Influence of the City of Orland. Currently, the site contains the existing church on the
northern half of the parcel, with vacant land making up the majority of the southern half (adjacent to the
US BoR/OUWUA Lateral 40 canal).

Mr. Friend noted that the Public Hearing was published and mailed out, and that only one written reply
was received. City Staff provided a copy of the written public comment to all Commissioners to review.
Mr. Friend stated that no development was being proposed at this meeting, clarifying that the only action
was to annex the property into the City Limits. Mr. Friend shared that Staff recommends the adoption of
the (two) categorical exemptions (15301 existing structures and 15319 annexation of exempt facilities).

Chairperson Nordbye opened the Public Hearing at 5:44 PM.

Orland resident and neighbor to the proposed project Ms. Kristina Hutson, shared concerns about the
proposed project including water contamination, environment impacts, parking, and traffic on the road.
Ms. Hudson asked questions about the egress and ingress of property and water drainage.

Orland resident and neighbor to the proposed project Mr. Jake Hutson, shared his concerns including
the legality of the project, adding homes in the area and water lines going under the ditch on his
property.

Chairperson Nordbye closed the Public Hearing at 5:47 PM.

Chairperson Nordbye emphasized that the Commission is not approving construction, plot plans, or
alterations to existing structures at this time. He made it clear that any matters related to drainage
modifications, building alterations, or additions would be addressed in a separate meeting for specific
approval. Furthermore, Chairperson Nordbye highlighted that there is no change in ownership; the sole
approval being granted tonight is the inclusion of the property within the City limits of Orland.

Commissioner Montague articulated historical reservations, specifically citing previous concerns related
to circulation, explaining why he voted against the annexation several years ago.

Chairperson Nordbye underscored that prior to any prospective development in the area, the City would
rigorously assess various factors to include traffic mitigation, storm drainage, and a mandate for all new
constructions to connect to and make connections to City water and sewer utilities. Mr. Friend




6. A.

explained that, at present, there is no formal proposal for development. Any future development
proposal will require thorough consideration of the mentioned factors.

Ms. Hutson stated her concerns about the additional traffic on the road and shared she also owns the
property, where her livestock graze, across from the church. Ms. Hutson asked for clarification of who
owns the property and who the applicant was. Mr. Friend clarified who the applicant and owners of the
property are stating that it was his understanding that the LDS church owns the property and that Mr.
Bruce Meyers and Mr. Brien Hamilton (representative) are the applicants.

Developer representative Brien Hamiton stated that the only thing being approved tonight would be the
assignment of pre-zoning and annexation into the City and shared his believe that there is no increase
in traffic, no increase in water demand nor any increases or changes to drainage.

Vice Chairperson Elliott inquired about road width and parking shoulders, with Mr. Friend clarifying that,
despite being private, the road adheres to City standards, specifying dimensions and detailing a vertical
curb, gutter and sidewalk on the east side of the street. Vice Chairperson Elliott emphasized that the
annexation aims to enhance property value, asserting that City incorporation would lead to a significant
increase in property value.

Vice Chairperson Elliott discussed the circulation plan, traffic mitigation, asked about Conditions of
Approval and wanted it to be noted to the Council that there were concerns raised and the Commission
would like it to be known to the City Council that they desired to see that the access road was brought
up to full City-standards. Mr. Elliott also included in his statement that he desired that the Commission
would consider factors to include additional ingress/egress, for public safety reasons, before any future
development was permitted.

ACTION: Commissioner Lazorko moved, seconded by Commissioner Montague to approve Planning
Commission Resolution PC 2022-19, recommending for approval to the City Council the intent to annex
a parcel of land into the City of Orland, pre-zoning of that parcel of land otherwise known as APN 046-
080-016 with the R-1, one-family residential zoning designation, and, recommending for approval the
associated Conditional Use Permit (CUP #2023-03) subject to the Findings provided in the staff report
and additionally recommending that the Planning Commission determine that the proposed action was
exempt from further review pursuant to Sections 15301 and 15319 of the Pubic Resources C. Motion
carried by a roll call vote, 4-0.

Ayes: Commissioners Sharon Lazorko, Vern Montague, Vice Chairperson Wade Elliott and
Chairperson Stephen Nordbye
Nays: None

Vice Chairperson Elliott wanted on the record that future development on this property will be by
the book.

Chairperson Nordbye thanked the people in the audience that came forward and provided
concerns and input that will be brought forward to City Council.




6. A.

B. Housing Element

Chairperson Nordbye stated that the Housing Element Public Hearing would be postponed until
the regular meeting of the Planning Commission on January 18, 2024.

7. STAFF REPORT

Mr. Friend provided a verbal update to the Commission on items that will be coming forward at
the January meeting including the annual Planning Department presentation, annual election of
chairperson and vice chairperson for the Commission and briefly discussed the County’s project
to update the Multi-Jurisdictional Multiple-Hazard Mitigation Report. Staff also noted that they
will be handing out Planning Commissioner Handbooks, General Plans, and Zoning packets to
the Commissioner’s at the January meeting.

8. COMMISSIONERS REPORTS

e Vice Chairperson Elliott sought information regarding the closure of Subway, but City Staff was
not aware of any information about the matter and was unable to confirm the status of the
business.

o Commissioner Montague indicated nothing to report.
¢ Commissioner Lazorko shared her thoughts on the new street and lane striping on East Street.

9. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
None
10. ADJOURNMENT - 6:30 PM

Respectfully submitted,

Jennifer Schmitke, City Clerk Stephen Nordbye, Chairperson




7. A.

2
INC. 1909 e

\&irrornss

CITY OF ORLAND STAFF REPORT
MEETING DATE: January 18, 2024

TO: City of Orland Planning Commission
FROM: Scott Friend, AICP — City Planner
SUBJECT: General Plan Amendment (GPA) #2023-02: Supplement to the 2021-2029

6" Cycle Housing Element Update. Public Hearing. The 2021-2029
Housing Element was recommended for approval to the City Council by the
Planning Commission on November 18", 2021, and was adopted by the
Orland City Council on March 1, 2022. Upon review, HCD determined that
the Housing Element was not in full compliance with State Housing Law and
that revisions/additions were necessary. This resulted in a revision of the
2021-2029 Housing Element which requires a re-adoption of the Housing
Element.

Environmental Review: Staff recommends that the Planning Commission
determine that the proposed action is exempt from further CEQA review
pursuant CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3), known as the “common
sense exemption”.

SUMMARY:

State law requires General Plan Housing Elements be updated on eight-year cycles, and the Element
must be reviewed and approved by the California Housing and Community Development Department
(HCD). The 2021-2029 Housing Element recommended for approval to the City Council by the Planning
Commission on November 18", 2021, and was adopted by the Orland City Council on March 1, 2022.
After adoption, the Housing Element was sent to the California Department of Housing and Community
Development (HCD) for final review and certification as required by State Housing Law (Government
Code §§65580 - 65589.11). Upon review, HCD determined that the Housing Element was not in full
compliance with State Housing Law and certain revisions/additions were necessary. After a six-month
process, working with HCD and revising sections of the Housing Element, the Housing Element is now
considered by HCD to comply with the requirements of State Housing Law. See Attachment A for HCD’s
substantial compliance letter. The revised 2021-2029 Housing Element will be presented to the City
Council for re-adoption at a public hearing, to be determined at a later date.




7. A.

DISCUSSION:

As noted previously, the City adopted 2021-2029 Housing Element was determined by the California
Housing and Community Development Department (HCD) to require revisions necessary to comply
with State Housing Law. This resulted in several changes to the existing Housing Element Programs
as well as the addition of seven (7) new Programs. Furthermore, additional analysis and figures
were added to the Housing Element based on HCD comments. Except for minor typo revisions, all
revisions/additions are shown in Attachment B. The revised 2021-2029 Housing Element is
included in the staff report as Attachment C. The November 18", 2021, Planning Commission staff
report for (GPA) #2021-02: 2021-2029 6" Cycle Housing Element Update is included as Attachment D.

In conformance with Government Code §65352, and prior to the City taking action to adopt the presented
revised 2021-2029 Housing Element Update and General Plan Amendment, staff has referred the
proposed action to the following entities for comments:

1. The County of Glenn

Orland Unified School District

Glenn County Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO)
Orland Unit Water Users Association (OUWUA)

Glenn County Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA)

State Water Resources Control Board

N o g M w0 DN

The following Native American Tribes:
a. Mooretown Rancheria of Maidu Indians
b. Grindstone Indian Rancheria of Wintun-Wailaki Indians of California
c. Paskenta Band of Nomlaki Indians
d. Mechoopda Indian Tribe of Chico Rancheria

8. Central Valley Flood Protection Board

ENVIRONMENTAL DETERMINATION:

The amendment to the City’s General Plan for this action has been determined to qualify as being exempt
from California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) requirements pursuant to Section 15061 (b)(3).
Specifically, section 15061(b)(3) states, in part, that a project is exempt from CEQA if “the activity is
covered by the “common sense” exemption that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential
for causing a significant effect on the environment. Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no
possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not
subject to CEQA” (see Attachment E — Notice of Exemption).

RECOMMENDATIONS:

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission find that the project is categorically exempt from further
review pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and, recommend approval of
GPA#2023-02 to the City Council.




Staff recommends the following process for the consideration of this matter:
1.

2
3.
4

7. A.

Accept report by staff;
Open the public hearing and take public testimony;
Close the public hearing and initiate consideration of the project; and

Motion and vote.

If the Planning Commission determines that it intends to approve the project as proposed and as
described in this report, staff offers the following motion for the Commission’s consideration:

1.

California Environmental Quality Act: Move that the Planning Commission determine that the
project is categorically exempt from further review under the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) pursuant to Section §15061(b)(3).

2. General Plan Amendment: Move that the Planning Commission make a recommendation the City

Council to adopt Resolution 2023-XX approving GPA #2023-02 as presented herein.

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A — HCD Substantial Compliance letter
Attachment B — Revisions to adopted 2021-2029 Housing Element

Attachment C — Copy of revised 2021-2029 Housing Element document (full text of
document provided on USB drive due to length and complexity).

Attachment D — November 18, 2021 Planning Commission staff report (date of original
approval).

Attachment E — Notice of CEQA Exemption
Attachment F — Planning Commission Resolution — 2023-___




STATE OF CALIFORNIA - BUSINESS, CONSUMER SERVICES AND HOUSING AGENCY GAVIN NEWSOM, Go| /- A-

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

DIVISION OF HOUSING POLICY DEVELOPMENT
2020 W. EI Camino Avenue, Suite 500

Sacramento, CA 95833

(916) 263-2911 / FAX (916) 263-7453

www.hcd.ca.gov

November 21, 2023

Pete Carr, City Manager
City of Orland

815 Fourth Street
Orland, CA, 95963

Dear Pete Carr:
RE: City of Orland’s 6" Cycle (2021-2029) Revised Draft Housing Element

Thank you for submitting the City of Orland’s (City) revised draft housing element that
was received for review on November 21, 2023. The revised draft was made available
to the public for seven days. Pursuant to Government Code section 65585, the
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) is reporting the results of
its review.

The revised draft element meets the statutory requirements that were described in
HCD’s May 12, 2022, review. The housing element will substantially comply with State
Housing Element Law (Gov. Code, § 65580 et seq) when it is adopted, submitted to,
and approved by HCD, in accordance with Government Code section 65585.

Public participation in the development, adoption and implementation of the housing
element is essential to effective housing planning. Throughout the housing element
process, the City should continue to engage the community, including organizations that
represent lower-income and special needs households, by making information regularly
available and considering and incorporating comments where appropriate. Please be
aware, any revisions to the element must be posted on the local government’s website
and to email a link to all individuals and organizations that have previously requested
notices relating to the local government’s housing element at least seven days before
submitting to HCD.

For your information, pursuant to Government Code section 65583.3, the City must
submit an electronic sites inventory with its adopted housing element. The City must
utilize standards, forms, and definitions adopted by HCD. Please see HCD’s housing
element webpage at https://www.hcd.ca.gov/planning-and-community-
development/housing-elements for a copy of the form and instructions. The City can
reach out to HCD at sitesinventory@hcd.ca.gov for technical assistance.

10



http://www.hcd.ca.gov/
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/planning-and-community-development/housing-elements
https://www.hcd.ca.gov/planning-and-community-development/housing-elements
mailto:sitesinventory@hcd.ca.gov

Pete Carr, City Manager
Page 2

Several federal, state, and regional funding programs consider housing element
compliance as an eligibility or ranking criteria. For example, the CalTrans Senate Bill
(SB) 1 Sustainable Communities grant, the Affordable Housing and Sustainable
Communities program, and HCD’s Permanent Local Housing Allocation consider
housing element compliance and/or annual reporting requirements pursuant to
Government Code section 65400. With a compliant housing element, the City will meet
housing element requirements for these and other funding sources.

For your information, some general plan element updates are triggered by housing
element adoption. HCD reminds the City to consider timing provisions and welcomes
the opportunity to provide assistance. For information, please see the Technical
Advisories issued by the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research at:
https://www.opr.ca.gov/planning/general-plan/guidelines.html.

HCD appreciates the hard work, patience, collaboration and dedication the housing
element team provided in the review and update of the housing element. HCD
particularly applauds the efforts of Scott Friend and Mike Martin. HCD looks forward to
receiving the City’s adopted housing element. If you have any questions or need
additional technical assistance, please contact Jose Ayala at Jose.Ayala@hcd.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

Paul McDougall
Senior Program Manager

7. A.

11



https://www.opr.ca.gov/planning/general-plan/guidelines.html
mailto:Jose.Ayala@hcd.ca.gov

Revisions to 2021-2029 Housing Element as a
Result of HCD State Housing Law Compliance Review

The following indicates the revisions made to the previously adopted City of Orland 2021-2023
Housing Element as result of HCD State Housing Law compliance review. Note: revisions are
shown in a strikethrough/double underline format.

Pages 14 - 16 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element have been revised as follows:

° Remove Governmental Constraints to Housing Development for Persons with Disabilities:
adopt a formalized reasonable accommodation procedure to allow approval of variances
needed by individuals with disabilities (Program HE-3.D). Fhis-was-rotachieved-duete

Himited-staffingresourees. The City adopted a reasonable accommodation ordnance into
the municipal code.

Effectiveness of Programs for Special Needs Groups

The City has demonstrated a great effort in working towards accomplishing many of the
objectives set for all of the 21 programs of the 2014-2021 Housing Element. The City met all of
its 21 program objectives to some degree resulting the continuation of 8 programs, modifying 8

programs, and deletion of 5 programs because they were completed. Appendix A provides a
review of all of the 2014 programs.

As a part of analyzing prior programs, the element must provide an explanation of the
effectiveness of goals, policies, and related action in meeting the housing needs of special

needs populations. Table HE achievements related to special needs populations are
summarized below:

Seniors. As shown in Figure 47: Year Built, the City has a significant older housing stock built

prior to the passage of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in 1990. Rehabilitation and
physical improvements are important to ensure that housing is accessible to older populations.
The City administered a Housing Rehabilitation Program (Program HE-1.B), which resulted in
the rehabilitation of approximately two housing units annually. The City maintains a CDBG
Revolving Loan Fund for the Program.

In addition, many seniors are on restricted incomes and in need of affordable housing options.
While the 2014 Housing Element did not have a program specifically identified for the
production of senior housing, there were multiple programs which assist in this development.

Program HE-2.C resulted in the production of nine ADUs, many of which were constructed to
provide affordable housing to seniors. Program HE-3.C resulted in the development of 33
affordable single family homes through the Community Housing Improvement Program.
Program HE-2.B assisted in the development of residential units by identifying vacant and
underutilized land in the City and resulted in the rezoning of a property from commercial uses
to high density residential uses. While the units produced through these programs are not age-

Attachment C

7.A.

12




restricted, they do help to increase the supply of affordable housing that is potentially available
to seniors who meet income requirements.

Persons with Disabilities. Persons with disabilities also benefit from housing rehabilitation.

Orland has a significantly older housing stock built prior to the passage of the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA) in 1990. The Housing Rehabilitation (Program HE-1.B) resulted in physical

improvements to and average of two units per year. In addition, the Program HE-3.D
established a reasonable accommodation ordinance which was designed to remove
governmental constraints for disable persons.

Large Households. Large households, defined as consisting of five or more persons residing

together, typically lack adequately sized and affordable housing options. As discussed in
Housing Needs Assessment, and shown in Figure 75, large households make up approximately

21 percent of all households in the City. The Large Household Program (Program HE-3.F)

requires the City to offer incentives to housing developers for the production of rental housing
units for three or more bedrooms. However, while the city encourages the development of
these larger units, no developers agreed to add larger units during the 2014-2021 time period.
Additional actions are needed to increase the housing supply and diversity of housing options
to accommodate the needs for large households, such as incentives for Accessory Dwelling
Units (ADUs) and a formal procedure identifying incentives for housing with three bedrooms or

greater.

Farm Workers. There are an estimated 525 Orland residents employed in the agriculture,
forestry, fishing and hunting, and mining industries. This is about 17% of the total employed
population. The majority of these persons would most likely be employed in agriculture or
mining_as forestry, hunting and fishing opportunities in Orland is virtually non-existent.
However, farmworker needs are accommodated through housing programs and policies that
assist lower-income households in general rather than specialized programs, such as the At-Risk
Housing program (Program AH-1.1.1), which monitors at-risk affordable units, Housing for
special Needs Population program (Program AH-1.2.2) which provides for expedited
processing, concessions and incentives for affordable housing, , and Extremely Low-Income
Housing Program (Program AH-1.2.4), which promotes Single-Room Occupancy (SRO), one-
bedroom units, and supportive housing.

Single-Parent Households (Female-Headed). As discussed in Housing Needs Assessments —

Familial Status, 20-40% of children reside in households headed by single mothers in the City.
Many single parent households, especially female-headed households, live in poverty due to
low incomes and higher family expenses. The First time Homebuyers program (Program HE.1-C)
provides an important resource for these and other lower-income households, including single-
parent households. Recently, the City was able to renew the First-time Buyers program while
some loans are in process, no loans have been awarded as of yet. However, through the
Community Housing Improvement Program (CHIP) which provides housing for lower-income
households, 82 new single family homes have been constructed. This program is effective and
will be continued. While this program was not especially affective during the 2014-2021 time
period, the recent renewal of the First-time Homebuyers program will assist in the effort to

Attachment C

7.A.

13




increase affordable housing options for special needs groups as opportunities arise.

Homeless. A lack of affordable housing for low- and moderate incomes increases the number of

persons whose incomes fall below the poverty level and may be housing insecure. The

Affordable Housing Preservation program (Program HE-3.A), the Self Help Housing Development
rogram (program HE-3.C) and Emergency Shelters & Transitional/Supportive Housing program

(Program HE-3.G) have supported the preservation and expansion of the affordable housing
supply, but the need continues to exceed available resources, Rental subsidies provided

through the HABC Housing Choice Voucher program have helped address housing insecurity, as
ell.

While the City has made progress towards its goals to provide affordable housing, including
housing for special needs populations, the overall need continues to exceed available
resources. Each of the programs included in the 5th Cycle has been evaluated for inclusion in

the 6th Cycle. Programs were removed if they constituted a routine function by the City or were
no longer relevant based on funding resources and requirements. Programs were kept and/or
consolidated into a revised or new program for the 6th Cycle. In addition, new and/or revised
goals, policies, and programs have been identified to respond to the governmental and
nongovernmental constraints identified in the various sections of the Housing Element. The
2021 Housing Element includes the list of goals, policies, and programs recommended for the
2021-2029 planning period based on this combination of analyses.

Page 20 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element has been revised as follows:

Program: HQL-1.2.1: Housing Rehabilitation Program. Continue the City program to provide
financial assistance to owner and renter low-income households for housing rehabilitation. The
City will develop outreach materials that are posted on the City’s website and are available at
City Hall. Building inspectors will provide outreach materials to potential applicants when
deemed appropriate.

Responsible Party:  Finance Department, Grants Administration
Financing: CDBG and HOME funds

Time Frame: Ongoing. Analyze need and capacity on an annual basis, and determine if
the City’s existing Revolving Loan Fund has sufficient funds to
accommodate need. If not, complete new applications for State CDBG
and/or HOME funds as needed. Develop and post outreach materials by
2025.

Page 22 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element has been revised as follows:

Program HQY-1.2.1: Medium and High-Density Residential Sites Amendment to Families per
Structure Requirement. Amend the Residential Two-Family Zone (R-2) and Multiple Family

Attachment C

7.A.

14




Residential and Professional Zone (R-3) in the City zoning code to remove the public safety height

requirement, the requirement that limits development to no more than “four families per

structure” and replace the conditional use permit process with a site plan or similar process to
promote approval certainty.

Responsible Party:  Planning Department
Financing: General Fund
Time Frame: Amendment adopted by November 2022

Program HQY-1.2.2: Development Processing System Review. Monitor the development
processing/review procedures to minimize the time required for review by the City. The City
shall continue to make available to prospective developers the option of having a pre-
application meeting prior to submittal of a formal project application. In reviewing these
procedures, the City will solicit input from local developers, real estate agents, nonprofit

housing groups and other interested parties._The City will also prepare a written procedure to
implement streamlining provisions of Government Code section 65913.4 (SB 35).

Responsible Party: City Manager, Planning Department
Funding Source: General Fund

Time Frame: Ongoing, annually, written procedure by 2026

Program HQY-1.2.3: Removal of Governmental Constraints to Housing Development for
Persons with Disabilities. Develop and formalize the process that a person with disabilities or
their representative must follow to make a reasonable accommodation request that both
streamlines the permit review process and provides reasonable accommodation for a disability.
The process will allow for review and approval at the staff level and have minimal or no fees
associated with it. This information will be made available to the public through postings and
brochures at the City and on the City’s website.

Responsible Party: Planning and Building Departments
Funding Source: General Fund
Time Frame: The formalized procedure will be adopted by January 2025

Pages 23 — 24 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element have been revised as follows:

Program: HQY-1.2.5: Transitional and Supportive Housing. Amend the City’s Zoning Code to
allow transitional and supportive housing in non-residential zones (C-1, M-L and DT-MU) and only

subject to requirements that apply to other residential dwellings of the same type in the same
zone.

Responsible Party: Planning Department

Attachment C

7. A.

15




Funding Source: General Fund
Time Frame: The zoning code will be amended by January 2025

Program: HQY-1.2.6: By Right Permanent Supportive Housing. Amend the City’s Zoning Code
to allow Permanent Supportive Housing as a use by right in areas zoned for mixed uses and
nonresidential zones permitting multifamily uses if it meets specified requirements, as defined
and delineated in Government Code section 65651.

Responsible Party: Planning Department

Funding Source: General Fund
Time Frame: The zoning code will be amended by January 2025

Program: HQY-1.2.7: Group Homes for Seven or More Persons. Amend the City’s Zoning Code
and permit procedures to allow group homes for seven or more persons in all zones allowing
residential use and only subject to objective standards similar to other residential uses of the
same type in the same zone.

Responsible Party: Planning Department

Funding Source: General Fund
Time Frame: The zoning code will be amended by January 2025

for seven or more persons in all zones aIIowmg residential use and only subject to objective

standards similar to other residential uses of the same type in the same zone.

Responsible Party: Planning Department

Funding Source: General Fund
Time Frame: The zoning code will be amended by January 2025

Program AH-1.1.1: At-Risk Units Monitoring Program. The City will annually assess the status of
publicly subsidized, rent restricted affordable housing units to determine the contract
expiration dates for the project’s funding sources, and communicate with property owners and
comply with noticing requirements under Government Code 65863.10. For projects with
contracts that will expire in the next 3 years (ascertained annually), develop a proactive plan to
preserve affordable rents at these projects. This will include initiation of discussions with
owners, coordination with qualified entities with capacity to acquire and manage properties
and assisting with financial resources to extend contracts.

Responsible Party: Finance Department, Grants Administration

Funding Source: CDBG and HOME, General Fund

Attachment C

7. A.

16




Page 25 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element has been revised as follows:

Program AH-1.2.1: Funding for Affordable Housing Development. Participate with
developers in funding applications where the City is an eligible applicant or co-applicant (as
described in the Resources chapter of this document.). The City will post information on its
website to inform potential developers of the City’s support for affordable housing development
and who to contact for information.

Responsible Party: Finance Department, Grants Administration
Funding Source: General Fund
Time Frame: Ongoing, as funding opportunities are made available_and at least bi-

annual contact with affordable housing developers to identify
development opportunities

Program AH-1.2.2: Housing for Special Needs Populations. Support the construction of housing
and provision of services for residents deemed to have special needs, which includes but is not
limited to seniors, farmworkers, persons with disabilities, female- headed households, and
those experiencing homelessness. City support will include but is not limited to: support of
and/or pursuing funding applications with developers, expediting processing, and granting
concessions and incentives for housing developments that include units targeted to or
appropriate for these households. On at least an annual basis, meet with the Glenn County
Community Action Department and Dos Rios Continuum of Care (CoC) staff to discuss the
housing needs of these groups served by the County and CoC, and to strategize funding and
potential development opportunities.

Responsible Party: City Manager, Planning Department

Funding Source: General Fund

Time Frame: Ongoing, with annual meetings to identify development opportunities

Program AH-1.2.3: Large Household Housing. The City will establish a program to offer
incentives for the development of rental housing with three or more bedrooms. These
incentives may include but are not limited to fee reductions, modifications to development
standards, and/or financial incentives. In addition, the City will prepare and make available
materials so that developers are aware of the City’s incentives.

Responsible Party: Planning Department
Funding Source: General Fund
Time Frame: Ongoing. The Program will be developed by September

2022, with marketing materials developed by December
2022. Incentives will be considered as part of annual

outreach with developers.

Attachment C

7. A.

17




Pages 28- 29 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element have been revised as follows:

Policy: FH-1.1: Move towards more balanced and integrated living patterns by addressing:

1. older affordable and naturally occurring affordable housing, low-income households, and
people of color throughout the City;

disparities in rates of homeownership for Hispanic/Latino residents compared to White
residents;

increase housing choices and affordability; and
employ place-based strategies toward community revitalization.

N

I o

Program FH-1.1.1: The City will conduct outreach in both English and Spanish at least once per
year to encourage owners to apply for funding through the City’s Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) Housing Rehabilitation Program. The City will focus on its older stock of
affordable and naturally occurring affordable housing properties for neighborhood
revitalization. Outreach may consist of the following: posting links on the City’s website and
Facebook page, posting physical flyers at City Hall and around the City, and sending an “email
blast” to the City’s stakeholder contact list.

Responsible Party: Grants Management & Planning Department

Financing: Allocation of staff time and cost of bilingual outreach
materials through General Fund

Timeframe: At least one qualifying property to receive funding through
the City’s Housing Rehabilitation Program every year of the
Housing Element cycle, starting in the 2" year, provided a
qualified pool of applicants. The City will evaluate its outreach
efforts at least once per year and adjust as deemed necessary
by governing bodies and City staff.

Geographic Targeting: Throughout the City

Metric: 8 units in the planning period

Program FH-1.1.2: The City will meet with Community Housing Improvement Program (CHIP)
and Habitat for Humanity Yuba-Sutter (Habitat) once per year to discuss potential development
opportunities in the City and methods for collaboration. Focus on feasibility of self-help housing
that includes low-interest loan and down payment assistance programs. Assist developers with
affirmative outreach to people of color, including Spanish language materials. Evaluate if the
City’s Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Homebuyer Program can be used for down
payment assistance.

Responsible Party: City Manager & Planning Department

Financing: Allocation of staff time and cost of bilingual outreach materials through
General Fund

Attachment C

7. A.

18




Timeframe: City to evaluate if its CDBG Homebuyer Program can be used for down
payment assistance for this program by the end of the 2" year of the
Housing Element cycle. CHIP and Habitat to be in development on at
least one project each orin collaboration by the end of the Housing
Element cycle.

Geographic Targeting: Throughout the City

Metric: At least one project in the planning period

Program FH-1.1.3: The City will utilize land use strategies to promote housing choices

throughout the City, including accessory dwelling units, junior accessory dwelling units,
duplexes to fourplexes, lots splits, smaller lot single family and other innovative housing types

Responsible Party: City Manager & Planning Department
Financing: Allocation of staff time
Timeframe: City to disseminate information bulletins, at least every other vear,

throughout the City as part of outreach efforts and provide technical
assistance on a project basis

Geographic Targeting: Throughout the City

Metric: At least 20 units in the planning period

Program FH-1.1.4: The City will, as part of its capital improvement program (CIP) through state
and federal funding will seek public improvements throughout the City and areas of higher

need, including but not limited to street improvements, streetscapes, sidewalks, lighting, safe
routes to school, park improvements, community facilities and community amenities.

Responsible Party: City Manager & Planning Department
Financing: General Fund
Timeframe: Annually as part of the CIP and seek application for state or federal

funding at least twice in the planning period
Geographic Targeting: Throughout the City and areas of higher need

Metric: At least four improvements in the planning period

Page 30 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element has been revised as follows:

Program FH-1.2.1: In collaboration with Glenn County and the City of Willows, assist with
publishing an annual Request for Proposal (RFP) for Permanent Local Housing Allocation (PLHA)
funds to attract affordable housing developers to the region.

Attachment C

7. A.

19




Responsible Party: City Manager & Planning Department
Financing: Allocation of staff time
Timeframe: Starting in the first year and continuing throughout the Housing

Element cycle, assist with publishing an annual RFP for PLHA funds.

Geographic Targeting: Throughout the City
Metric: At least one project in the planning period

Program FH-1.2.2: The City will meet with Glenn County Community Action Department at least
once per year to coordinate information, referrals, and outreach to residents for available
services related to emergencies, employment, housing, and income. This may include posting
links on the City’s website and Facebook page, posting physical flyers at City Hall, and sending
an “email blast” to the City’s stakeholder contact list at least once per year in English and
Spanish.

Responsible Party: City Manager & Planning Department

Financing: Allocation of staff time and cost of bilingual outreach materials through
General Fund

Timeframe: Coordinate information, referrals, and outreach by the end of the 15t
year of the Housing Element cycle. The City will evaluate its outreach
efforts at least once per year and adjust as deemed necessary by
governing bodies and City staff.

Geographic Targeting: Throughout the City

Metric: At least once per year

Page 31 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element has been revised as follows:

Program FH-1.3.1: As of 2019, approximately 43% of Orland residents spoke Spanish at home.
The City will expand access to community meetings by providing live interpretation in Spanish.
The City will also expand access to materials created for the public such as flyers, brochures,
public notices, fact sheets, social media, etc. by providing written materials in both English and
Spanish. Bilingual English/Spanish City staff members may conduct the live interpretation and
written translation, or the City may contract with a professional translator.

Responsible Party: Planning Department & City Administration
Financing: Allocation of staff time
Timeframe: Provide English/Spanish language access as described in the program by

the end of the 2" year of the Housing Element cycle. Conduct an

Attachment C

7. A.

20




analysis of languages spoken at home using data from the U.S. Census
American Community Survey at least once every two years to evaluate
if additional language access is needed.

Geographic Targeting: Throughout the City

Metric: Evaluate once every two vears and make adjustment as necessary

Program FH-1.4.1: Meet with North Valley Property Owners Association (NVPOA)
and Legal Services of Northern California (LSNC) at least once per year to
coordinate fair housing information, referrals, and outreach to residents. This may
include promoting NVPOA and LSNC's fair housing workshops by posting links on
the City’s website and Facebook page, posting physical flyers at City Hall, and
sending an “email blast” to the City’s stakeholder contact list.

Responsible Party: Planning Department & City Administration

Financing: Allocation of staff time. The City may apply for, or work
with a consultant to apply for, CDBG funds through State
HCD to support fair housing enforcement and outreach
activities.

Timeframe: Coordinate information, referrals, and outreach by the end
of the 1t year of the Housing Element cycle. Thereafter,
outreach will occur annually.

Geographic Targeting: Throughout the City

Metric: Annual outreach

Pages 35 - 37 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element have been revised as follows:

Local Data and Knowledge and Local Patterns

As noted above, census tracts either overlap with City boundaries or the census tracts
encompass large areas of the City. Further, block group data in a rural setting can be less
accurate due to sample sizes. These circumstances combined make evaluating socio-economic
patterns within the City more challenging but based on local data and knowledge, the City
generally does not have distinct patterns of socio-economic characteristics and neighborhood
quality of life is fairly homogenous throughout the City, as follows:

e Income and Affordability: Generally, household incomes do not vary substantiall
throughout the City with most households earning less than $100,000 and a majority of
households earning less than $50,000 (See Figures 42 and 43). Based on local knowledge,
this mix of incomes is generally spread throughout the City with no major differences
between neighborhoods or areas of the City.

Attachment C

7.A.

21




Further, sales prices and rents do not vary substantially throughout the City. A few very
small areas (e.g., less than 10 units) in the southern central and northeast might have
sizable differences in rents and sales prices but generally throughout most of the City,
affordability is similar with no major patterns or differences in the affordability of homes. In
addition, housing assisted by public funding is generally spread throughout all areas of the
City and most subdivisions have been of similar size lots (e.g., 6,000 square foot lots). The
City generally does not have large rural estate lots. There are only two parcels in the City

zoned as Residential Estate. These parcels are currently and have been historically under
agricultural use (orchards). The lack of differences in sales and rents, evenly distributed

housing assisted with public funding and similar lot sizes indicates a fairly even pattern of
income and no major differences between areas or neighborhoods.

Identified Sites and Distribution by Income Group and Quadrant: To accommodate the
RHNA, the City identified sites by zoning to accommodate a variety of incomes. These sites

are generally spread out throughout the City. For example, each of the guadrants identify a
similar share of site capacity anticipated to accommodate housing for lower income
households. However, Quadrant 3 (southeastern) is anticipated to accommodate a large
share of the moderate and above moderate-income households, mainly due to one site
with significant lower density capacity. Despite the unevenness of the moderate and above
moderate income distribution, these sites are not anticipated to impact the overall fairly
even pattern of socio-economic characteristics throughout the City with a capacity of 293
units representing roughly 10 percent of the households.

Site Capacity by Income by Quadrant

Quadrant Lower Income Moderate Above Total
Income Moderate
Income

32 35 0 67

2 36 0 0 36

3 0 29 118 147

4 43 0 0 43
TOTAL 19 64 118 293

Housing Conditions: The need for rehabilitation and replacement of housing is generally
spread throughout the City. A majority of the housing stock (approximately 59 percent) that
comprises most of the City area was built prior to 1980. Newer housing stock built after
2000 represents a small portion of the housing stock (approximately 16 percent) and is

located in different areas of the City. Further, housing types (e.g., single family and
multifamily) and age of structures are mixed throughout the City and code enforcement

Attachment C

7.A.

22




cases generally do not have a distinct and re-occurring pattern in a particular part of the
City. Considering that older structures are more likely to be in need of rehabilitation and are
located throughout the City, there are no major differences in housing conditions from
neighborhood to neighborhood.

Neighborhood Conditions: Neighborhood conditions generally considers housing conditions,
streets, sidewalks, streetscapes, lights, traffic signals, accessibility, safe routes to school and
parks and recreation. While there are some differences between newer and older
neighborhoods, overall, these conditions do not substantially differ and there are no distinct
patterns of inequitable conditions or concentrations of substandard conditions. Most of the
City was built prior to 1980 so subdivisions had different standards. For example, sidewalks
have different widths. But there hasn’t been any major or large master planned areas or
subdivisions with significantly different communities such as larger lot sizes and substantial
open spaces with new schools and other community amenities that created stark

differences between areas of the City. Streets, lights, sidewalks and other improvements
are well maintained throughout the City. Safe routes to school and other active
transportation projects have occurred throughout the City.

The City is small (approximately three square miles) which provides easy access to all parts
of the City. The City of Orland has six parks ranging in size from 0.26 to 23 acres for a total
acreage of 47.35 acres. The City’s major park and recreation area (Lely Aquatic Park) is
located in the southeast and is easily accessible for everyone. Also, schools, including park

and recreation facilities, and shopping, including fresh food, are located throughout the City
or easily accessible by everyone.

Infrastructure Conditions and Quality: Generally, the City is served by the same water and

sewer systems and there are no major differences in terms of supply and quality. For
example, the City has six wells that are located throughout the City and provide water for
residents, but these wells are linked into one system and everyone generally shares the
same water quality. Also, all sewage is processed by the City treatment facility.

Special Household Needs: There are approximately 20 people experiencing homelessness in
the City. The majority of persons experiencing homelessness tend to congregate -under a
bridge (Hwy 99 W as it crosses Stony Creek) north of City limits in Glenn County and on
occasion-in Library Park in the center of town, but given the fairly low numbers, there are
no major differences from neighborhood to neighborhood for this special needs group.

However, services and programs could be geographically targeted to provide better access.

Environmental Quality: The City does not have any major industrial uses that with noxious
fumes or other waste that disproportionately any neighborhoods. Given the size of the City
and overall good air guality, everyone enjoys similar environmental quality.

Defining Features and Land Use Patterns: The City has two defining features that influenced
the land use pattern: Highway 32 and the California Northern Railroad tracks. While these
features influence the patterns of the streets and neighborhoods, generally, they do not

Attachment C

7. A.

23




separate neighborhoods and there isn’t much difference in terms of socio-economic
characteristics or the neighborhood conditions on either side of the features. For example,
Highway 32 is a two-lane road that does not create a physical barrier between the north
and south areas. The railroad tracks have five roadway crossing locations in the City
providing easy access to and from all neighborhoods in the City.

e State, Federal and Other Policies or Factors: The City’s socio-economic pattern has not been
influenced by state or federal policies or other factors. There are no particular areas within
the City that were influenced by redlining or a general inequity of investment versus other

areas of the City.

Page 41 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element has been revised as follows:

Enforcement Cases

HUD data on Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity (2013-2022) shows the three reported
inquiries. Two of the inquiries were described as “No Basis Given”, one on a Retaliation Basis,
and one on a Disability Basis. Additional data showed .... Given the low incidences of

discrimination cases in Orland, existing programs and policy actions are deemed sufficient to
account for future discrimination cases within Orland.

Page 81 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element has been revised as follows:

Environmental Burden

Figure 29: CalEnviroScreen 4.0 illustrates communities in California that are most affected by
many sources of pollution, and where people are often especially vulnerable to pollution’s
effects. CalEnviroScreen uses environmental, health, and socioeconomic information to produce
scores for every census tract in the state. An _area with a high score is one that experiences a
much higher pollution burden than areas with low scores. As shown in Figure 29, Orland is in
the middle 40 to 60 range indicating that Orland is fairly typical when compared to other
communities in California.

Educational Opportunity

Figure 30: School Attendance Boundary illustrates that all areas of the City, as well as the
surrounding unincorporated area of the County is served by at least one school district. The
Orland Unified School District provides kindergarten through high school educational opportunities in
the City of Orland. The City also has one private school, the Providence Christian School and the Butte
College-Glenn County campus.

Orland students are served by the Orland Unified School District (OUSD), which has six public
schools reported on by the California Department of Education (CDE), including two elementary
schools, one middle school, one high school, one independent study school, and one alternative
school. Parents have the choice of sending their children to OUSD Online School instead of

Attachment C

7.A.

24




sending them in person. North Valley High School typically serves students who have
experienced challenges in traditional school environments. While these schools have limited
data on performance scores for English language arts (ELA) and mathematics, this program
offers a valuable resource for students to continue their education in a supportive environment.
As shown in Figure 31: TCAC Education Map (2022), at least 75% of students in Orland have a
more positive educational outcome.

In Orland, the spatial distribution of public schools in relation to household median income are
as follows: Mill Street School (elementary), Fairview Elementary, and CK Price Intermediate

School are located in an area where the median household income was reported by the 2021
American Community Survey to be $69,506. Orland High School and North Valley High School

are located in an area where the median household income was reported by the 2021 American
Community Survey to be $45,739. While these median household incomes are vastly different,

because of the limited number of schools in Orland, the household income in relation to the

location of schools is a non-factor as elementary students in Orland attend the elementary
school nearest their home and all students in Orland attend CK Price Intermediate School and

Orland High School or North Valley High School.

Pages 82, 83, and 84 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element have been revised as follows:

Figure 29: CalEnviroScreen 4.0, Figure 30: School Attendance Boundary, and Figure 31: TCAC
Education Map (2022) are new figures.

Page 107 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element has been revised as follows:

Overcrowding

Overcrowding is an important measure to help determine if there is adequate housing stock for
the population. Figure 52: Occupants per Room by Tenure, 2019 identifies the number of units
that are considered by the federal government as Overcrowded (more than one occupant per
room) and Severely Overcrowded (1.5 or more occupants per room). In 2019, there were an
estimated 50 Overcrowded housing units in Orland, which was 2.0% of all units, and 42 Severely
Overcrowded units, which was 1.6% of all units. All of the Overcrowded units are owner-
occupied, while all of the Severely Overcrowded units are renter-occupied. (Note that the 2,552
estimated total number of housing units is for a different year (2019) and from a different
source (U.S. Census Bureau) than the estimated number of housing units shown in Figure 46:

Housing Units by Type, 2010 and 2020. As shown in Figure 53: Overcrowding, in approximately
half the City, 5 to 10 percent of persons are in overcrowded housing situations while less than 5
percent are in severe overcrowding situation as shown in Figure 54: Severe Overcrowding.

Pages 108 and 109 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element have been revised as follows:

Figure 56: Overcrowding and Figure 57: Severe Overcrowding are new figures.

Attachment C

7.A.

25




Page 113 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element has been revised as follows:

Figures 66 through 69 illustrate homeowners and renters in overpayment situations in the city.
Figure 66: Overpayment-Owners (2017-2021) and Figure 67 Overpayment-Owners (2010-
2014) illustrate the owner overpayment percentages between the two time periods. Figure 68:
Overpayment-Renters (2017-2021) and Figure 69 Overpayment-Renters (2010-2014) illustrate
the renter overpayment percentages between the two time periods.

Pages 114 - 117 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element have been revised as follows:

Figure 66: Overpayment-Owners (2017-2021), Figure 67 Overpayment-Owners (2010-2014),
Figure 68: Overpayment-Renters (2017-2021), and Figure 69 Overpayment-Renters (2010-2014)
are new figures.

Pages 128 and 129 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element have been revised as follows:

Large Households

A breakdown of the number of households by household size for Orland is shown in Figure 75:
Household Size, 2020. Most households fall into the size categories of one person per
household and two persons per household, each with about one-quarter of all households.
Large person households, which is considered to be 5 or more persons, makes up
approximately 21 percent of the City’s households.

Figure 84: Household Size, 2020

Household Size Households % of Total
1-person 616 22%
2-persons 692 25%
3-persons 532 19%
4-persons 393 14%
5-persons 310 11%
6-persons 149 5%
7+ persons 129 5%

Attachment C

7.A.

26




Page 157 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element has been revised as follows:

Land Use Controls

The City’s land use policy is laid out in the City’s General Plan and the Municipal Zoning Code.
The General Plan guides the City’s growth over a period of approximately 20 years. It includes
land use designations for housing, commercial, office and industrial. The Municipal Zoning
Code establishes design and development standards for all properties within the City. These
standards include allowable land uses, minimum lot size, setbacks, lot coverage, building height,
and parking requirements. The Zoning Code has three zoning designations for residential uses.
Some residential uses are also allowed in certain commercial zoning districts as well. The City’s
Zoning Code establishes minimum lot sizes and dimensions and maximum families per
structure, rather than units per acre. In addition, the City’s General Plan also regulates the
number of units allowed by setting the maximum units permitted in a zoning category

regardless of lot sizes. The City does not regulate density based on persons per acre and any provisions
related to population per acre are only a density assumption for planning purposes. Program HQY-1.2.1

is included in the Goals, Policies and Programs Chapter of this Housing Element to amend the
maximum families per structure requirement in the zoning code.

Page 166 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element has been revised as follows:

Site Improvements, Development Impact Fees, and Processing Fees

For new developments, the City requires developers to install the needed infrastructure to
service the homes. These include on and off-site improvements such as water and sewer lines,
curbs, gutters, sidewalks, and streets. Other improvements may be installed by the City or
some other local agency and the developer pays into a fund for the improvements (i.e. a traffic
light on a major intersection). For larger subdivisions, the City may require a land donation for
schools or parks, or the developer may have to build large infrastructure items such water tanks
or retention basins.

The standards imposed by the City of Orland are_very minimal and do not significantly impact

development costs. For example, street, curb and sidewalk improvements are generally limited
to the property frontage. These standards address health and safety codes and are not a

constraint to the construction of housing.

Page 176 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element has been revised as follows:

Constraints on Housing for Persons with Disabilities

California Government Code Section 65583(a)(4) requires Housing Elements to analyze potential
and actual constraints upon the development, maintenance, and improvement of housing for
persons with disabilities and to demonstrate local efforts to remove governmental constraints
that hinder the locality from meeting the need for housing for persons with disabilities. The City

Attachment C

7. A.

27




allows many types of home modifications that accommodate persons with disabilities without
requiring a permit. If the modifications involve encroachment on required zoning code setbacks
or other zoning code provisions, an applicant can request a variance to remove accessibility
impediments. The City plans to create a reasonable accommodation ordinance in this housing
element cycle so that a variance would not be needed in such cases. Care facilities housing six
or fewer people are allowed in the R-1, R-2, and R-3 zoning districts by right. The City does not
have any special standards for these care facilities and if serving six or fewer people, there are
no special noticing or community meetings needed. Residential care facilities serving more than
six people are allowed in all residential zoning districts with a Conditional Use Permit. Requiring
a conditional use permit, unlike other residential uses, may act as a constraint on housing for
persons with disabilities. Program HQY-1.2.7 has been added to address the potential
constraint.

The City defines family in zoning (Section 17.08.680) and land use, as follows:

1

'Family" means a group of individuals with a common bond by means of blood, marriage, or
conscientiously established relations living together as a housekeeping unit sharing a dwelling

unit.

Requiring a common bond by blood, marriage or conscientious decisions may be subject and
impact housing for persons with disabilities. Program HQY-1.2.8 has been added to remove or

modify these provisions to address potential constraints on housing for persons with
disabilities.

Page 177 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element has been revised as follows:

Wastewater Collection and Treatment

The City of Orland’s sewer system collects and treats all sewage from sources inside the city limits.
Currently sewage service costs $59.70 for every two months. The City’s sanitary sewer system

includes over 30 miles of pipelines, 400 sanitary sewer manholes, and four lift stations. Each lift
station currently serves an area of less than 20 acres. All sewage is collected and processed by
the Orland Wastewater Treatment Facility. According to the City's Public Works Department,
during the last quarter of 2021, the City reported receiving approximately 0.66 mgd at the
treatment plant. The City also received an average of approximately 0.65 mgd over the past
year. The treatment plant capacity is 2.1 mgd leaving a remaining capacity of 1.45 mgd.
According to the City’s Public Works Department, the average single-family home produces
approximately 431 gpd of wastewater. Based on this information, the RHNA of 247 units would
account for 106,457 gallons per day (gpd) of wastewater. This increased demand would represent
7.3 percent of the 1.45 mgd remaining plant capacity. Since there is adeguate capacity remaining
at the Wastewater Facility to serve future residential uses at the 247 units would not result in the

need for new or expanded facilities.

Attachment C

7. A.

28




Page 178 of the 2021-2029 Housing Element has been revised as follows:

Water Service

The City of Orland provides water service to its residents. Water service costs $61.35 every two
months for a 15,000-gallon allotment. The source of water supply for Orland is groundwater
pumped from six wells that produce between 350 and 1,090 gallons per minute (gpm). The
wells are located throughout the City and range in depth from 150 feet to 400 feet. The City’s
RHNA for the 2021 to 2029 period is 247 units. The City provides water use estimates based on
HUE, the amount of water a single-family home would use on a monthly basis. The average
daily water demand per HUE is 571 gallons. As such 247 units represent water demand of
141,037 gpd. City water is obtained from the Colusa Groundwater Subbasin. The estimated
storage capacity of the groundwater subbasin to a depth of 200 feet is approximately
13,025,887 AF or 4.24 trillion gallons. The 247 units annual water demand of 51,478,505
gallons represents 0.0012 percent of the available groundwater in the Colusa Groundwater
Subbasin. Based on the City’s existing groundwater pumping ability and the fact that currently
there is not a regulated limit on the amount of groundwater that can be extracted for the
Colusa Groundwater Subbasin, the City would have an adequate water supply to serve these
units.

Attachment C

7. A.

29




CITY OF ORLAND
Staff Report

TO: City of Orland Planning Commission
FROM: Scott Friend, AICP — City Planner

MEETING DATE: November 18, 2021; 7:00 p.m.
Carnegie Center, 912 Third Street, Orland, CA 95963

SUBJECT:  General Plan Amendment (GPA) #2021-02: 2021-2029 6™ Cycle Housing
Element Update. Public Hearing. State law requires every City and County in
California to have a General Plan to contain a minimum of seven (7) required
elements. The Housing Element is one of the seven required General Plan
Elements. The City must periodically amend these elements to reflect changing
conditions within the City and to maintain compliance with state and federal laws.
The purpose of the Housing Element is to adequately plan for the existing and
future housing needs of the City. This Element is being updated to address the 6"
Cycle planning period spanning from 2021-2029.

Environmental Review: Staff recommends that the Planning Commission
determine that the proposed action is exempt from further CEQA review pursuant
CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3), the “General Rule”.

Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission take the following action(s):
1) Conduct a public hearing to review the draft 2021-2029 6™ Cycle Housing Element; and

2) Adopt Resolution No. 2021-XX, recommending that the City Council approve the General Plan
Amendment (GPA) adopting the 2021-2029 Housing Element Update as presented.

Project Summary:

The Housing Element is one of the seven State-mandated elements of the General Plan. All
cities and counties in the State of California are required to update their General Plan
Housing Elements on a regular basis and to submit the updated Element to the California
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) for review and certification.
It is the only element of the General Plan that is required by law to be updated on a regular
basis. The current update cycle for the City of Orla